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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
Relating to student dress code policies 

 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 

 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Opened the hearing on HB 1335. 
 
Chelsea Schmitt: (see attachment 1) 
(7:30) 
 
Rep. Daniel Johnston: Do you have any friends that were denied this ability within ND? 
 
Ms. Schmitt: Not that I remember, but I know grand forks also passed that they were able 
to wear theirs.  
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: The las line of the bill, I am trying to clarify is it an 
athletic event or what, and what might be traditional tribal options?  
 
Ms. Schmitt: I was only asked to talk about graduation. 

 
Rep. Ruth Buffalo: (See Attachment 2)   
 
Rep. Heinert: It is shocking that we need a state law to allow our Native American population 
wear their traditional regalia for graduation.  
 
Rep.  Buffalo:  Yes, it’s shocking that we need to pass a bill for this, but we do need to.  
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  SD law just takes care of graduation issues, 
graduation ceremony is where you would want this to occur, not at other athletic events? 
 
Rep. Buffalo: Yes, exactly.  

 
Scott Davis, Executive Director for the Indian Affairs Commission: I am in support of 
this bill. I believe that this is long overdue.  
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Rep. Hoverson: I like the idea of this especially knowing what the eagle feather represents. 
It sounds like it’s already OK in ND, and there are no cases where a school has said no to 
an eagle feather? 
 
Mr. Davis: There have been plenty of cases where a school has said no to an eagle feather.  
 
Rep. Hoverson: Your desire is to the application process, or more so about ….?  
 
Mr. Davis: There is a large Native American population in public schools, and you get an 
eagle feather when you earn it. Getting one is a huge honor, and not being able to wear one 
now is a big deal.  
 
Rep. Hoverson: The schools, that do have the application process, are those just standard 
applications that anyone wants to wear something different, or are they special applications 
for tribal regalia?  
 
Mr. Davis: I think that every school is different.  
 
Rep. Dennis Johnson: Where do the eagle feathers come from? 
 
Mr. Davis:  We can apply to the federal game and fish to get a deceased eagle feather.  

 
Rep. Andrew Marschall: If a spectator wanted to come and wear their regalia, they should 
be able to do that. I want to clarify that the players could get ripped off? 
 
Mr. Davis:  There is a time and place to wear the feathers, and during a sporting event 
wearing one is not that time.  
 
Vice Chairman- Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  If the bill is changed graduation, that would be 
adequate? 

 
Rep. Pat D. Heinert: There is no emergency clause in there for 2019 graduation ceremonies, 
would you want us to put in an emergency clause? 
 
Mr. Davis: I think that putting one in would be very beneficial. 

 
Rep Buffalo: Yes, I would support an emergency clause and the amendments to specify the 
graduation ceremony.  

 
Rep. Hoverson: Can you name the schools that said no? 
 
Rep. Buffalo: I will send you an email.   

 
Alexis Baxley, Executive Director for the ND School Board Association: (See 
Attachment 3) 
 
Rep. Ron Guggisberg:  Have you shared this with the bill sponsor and is she ok with it? 
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Ms. Baxley: Yes. 
 
Aimee Copas, Executive Director for ND Council of Education and Leaders: We are 
fully in support of this bill, based on the change of the last line.  
 
Rep. Hoverson: Would you confirm as well that there are schools in ND that have said no.  
 
Ms. Copas: It has not been brought to my attention, other than what Representative Buffalo 
has already corrected.  
 
Cheryl Kary, Executive Director of Sacred Pipe Resource Center: (See Attachment 4) 
 
Sheridan L. Seaboy-McNeil: (see attachment 5)   
 
Nephew of Sheridan: Make a career of humanity. Commit yourself to a noble struggle of 
equal rights. You will make a greater person of yourself, a greater nation of your country, and 
a finer world to live in.  
 
Ira High Elk: (see attachment 6)  

 
Joseph McNeil Jr., President of the Standing Rock Development Corporation: (see 
attachment 7) 
 
Brianna Tortulita: I want to say that it was mentioned as it was a graduation thing. I went to 
century high school and growing up on that side of town we had issues of people mocking 
us due to being Native American. I think that this bill can open the door for conversation 
about this. I do believe that this could be something that could go on beyond just graduation. 
My sister was denied the right to wear an eagle feather and moccasins at her graduation. 
The feather was from my grandma and my mother, so it is a very important thing. Having that 
right denied was tough for our family. Many kids want to move states so that they can wear 
their tribal regalia.  
 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck: You think that we should add more items? 
 
Ms. Tortulita: Yes. 

 
Nathan Davis: I am in support of this bill because the regalia is a part of who we are and our 
culture. It says a lot if we are able to show who we are. This would be a huge step to 
strengthen the government relationship between Native American government and state.  

 
Dr. Lana Decoteau, Superintendent of Belcourt School District: I am in support of 
HB1335. This is an honor to allow our Native American students to wear their tribal regalia. 
It is a celebration of the heritage and culture.  
 
Kirstin Baesler, State Superintendent for the ND Department of Public Instruction: 
When I took office in 2013 the graduation rate was under 57% for the Native American 
population. That did go well for the overall productiveness for the ND population. It was our 
mission that all students graduate either with a high school diploma or a GED. A large port 
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of that effort is making sure that they feel there is a purpose and that they as a person are 
honored and acknowledge.  
 
Rep. Hoverson: Are you aware of any schools that have said no? 
 
Ms. Baesler: Yes.  
 
Representative Hoverson: Can you email those to me?  
 
Ms. Baesler: I can share the minutes that include those names with you.  
 
NO FURTHER TESTIMONY OR QUESTIONS. MEETING CLOSED.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
 
Relating to student dress code policies. 
 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1 

 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck:  Opened the hearing on HB 1335.  There was an 
amendment and it only addresses that you can use an eagle plume.  There is some pictures 
which we received from Rep. Buffalo.   There was some concern if we were eliminating every 
thing but the eagle plume that there are other items that are worn.  I am not sure how detailed 
this committee wants to be or should we leave some of that to local control.  We haven’t 
adopted the amendment that was proposed at this point.  We might need to change the 
amendment if we wanted to add other things.  (See Attachment 1) 
 
Rep. Johnston:  I that is a good reason why we should leave this at the local level.  In 
testimony we really didn’t hear anything convincing that says it is not working.  The question 
has been, have you ever been turned down at the local level.  This should obviously be 
allowed and if a district determined that they shouldn’t be allowed to wear something they 
would probably loose in the court of public opinion.   I don’t think we need a top down 
approach to it.  
 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck:  Rep. Hoverson you asked for some minutes? 
 
Rep. Hoverson:  Yes I also followed up with Miss Baesler as well as Rep. Buffalo.  Are there 
any schools that have actually said no. I would like more time to find out about this.   It seems 
a little micro-managing.  If it was up to me to wear it, I liked it.   But I don’t live there.   
 
Rep. Hager:  One of the reasons is specifically United Tribes brings people from Native 
American cultures from across the country so we are seeing many different types of regalia 
that is sacred in each of the tribes.  You have heard the lengthy process to allow sacred 
things and maybe we are at a time where we do need a little more top down guidance to the 
local school districts.   I was looking at the history of a tassel, maybe some of that history 
came from the eagle feather. The tassel was added within my lifetime.  There are some 
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similarities there and us looking at this and validating this.  I think this is the time for us to be 
doing this.  This is a very significant thing for everyone who came in here. 
 
Rep. Hoverson:  I do appreciate those comments but once you write something into state 
law I could easily see it coming back next session and then other things being brought forth 
to be adding in. 
 
Rep. Hager:   When I signed onto the bill I thought it would be a little more encompassing 
than just the Native American culture.  I think especially in the Fargo school system.  We 
have many different cultures represented.  This is a very narrow definition.  I think this is the 
first place for us to start as what we as a state are validating for Native American students in 
the state. 
 
Rep.  Heinert:   At first I thought this bill was too broad then the more I listened to testimony 
then I thought the bill was right on.  But the only other thing that came up was the emergency 
clause so it would go into effect for the graduation in May 2019.  It says the board of school 
districts or school.  So I don’t think we have to worry about the University systems or other 
private institutions like United Tribes. 
 
Rep. Longmuir:  When I was on the school board concerning baccalaureate and praying at 
the graduation ceremonies, those are done separately now for a separate group people.  If 
they want to recognize their culture maybe they should be doing a baccalaureate service?  I 
have a hard time separating that and this.  I think once this starts where does this stop. 
 
Rep. Pyle:  We could amend to not violate the prohibited items, such as tobacco or weapons, 
just thinking of the different items from different cultures that are significant items. 
 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck:  You are proposing a clarification on the amendment? 
 
Rep. Pyle:  Yes.  
 
Rep.  Johnston:   Did anyone receive anything that specified that this is a problem in North 
Dakota? 
 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck:  Superintendent Baesler said it was happening and there 
is an Indian Advisory Committee that has some notes.  We need to follow up on this.  We are 
not sure on how many schools this affected.  There were 13 testimonies in support of this bill 
and no opposition to this bill. 
 
Rep. Zubke:  When we talk about objects of cultural significance, would that allow things 
that could be offensive, since maybe a hood or something like that?  Just wondering what 
kind of door does this open? 
 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck:  Yes that is a good point and we need to have some local 
control back into there.  
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Rep. Pyle:   Central Cass allows the students to decorate their cap with different things.  
There is no true significance but it is personal to each graduate.  I don’t know if they regulate 
it or not.  
 
Rep. Guggisberg:  It seems like there is a lot of people who feel this is important enough to 
come and testify and change the law.   There was no opposition to it.   Sometimes we dig in 
to deep and get a little scared and something happens that was unintended.  South Dakota 
just did this and I don’t think we will run into any big issues by passing this law.  
 
Rep. Owens:   The only thing I see is how wide open it was and there is no definition of 
regalia and there has been a couple suggestions here that sound good and in a school 
sponsored activity or event, I understand the amendment will strike that and do just award 
ceremonies and graduation which limits this to those events.  
 
Rep. M. Johnson:  The governor has gone out of his way to repair some relationships. 
I’m not sure what a no vote would do. 
 
Rep.  Heinert:  The point about wearing traditional tribal regalia, I think we are telling the 
school boards that they have to allow this but we are not defining what they consider tribal 
regalia.  The students that appeared before us, if they would show up and show the school 
boards and it is traditional and here is my proof that it is traditional.  I think it should be up to 
each individual school board’s decision and to make that the way we have the bill written.  
That would be the proper way of doing it.  I would be perfectly fine with going the way it is 
originally just adding the emergency clause.   
 
Rep. D. Johnson:  I can agree with those comments but how about sanctioned events, like 
football or basketball or do you just want to go with graduation? 
 
Rep.  Heinert:  I have been to many games where I have seen the Native population wear 
regalia.  There has never been an issue with this other than graduation ceremony which they 
had to get permission to wear the eagle plume.  
 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck:  To clarify the sanctioned events, if you are a participant 
in the sanctioned events such as a football player versus an observer that is different.  We 
have the South Dakota law and it is almost the same.  
 
Rep. Hager:  What was the proposed amendment and does it still include the eagle feather 
and eagle plume or is that eliminated? 
 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck:  This is exactly like the South Dakota law it includes tribal 
regalia and eagle feather and eagle plume. 
 
Appointed subcommittee to work on HB 1335 to include Rep. Hager, Rep. Pyle, and Rep. 
Guggisberg and if you want to include Rep. Buffalo please do.  Bring forth and amendment.   
Hearing closed on HB 1335. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
 
Relating to student dress code policies. 
 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1 

 
Subcommittee hearing consisting of Rep. Pyle, Rep. Hager and Rep. Guggisberg. On HB 
1335.  

 
Rep Pyle:  Opened the hearing. We want the amendment to be a school district or a school 
may not establish a dress code policy that includes prohibiting a student from wearing 
traditional tribal regalia or objects of cultural significance at a graduation ceremony.  For the 
purposes of this section the term tribal regalia or object of cultural significance means and 
eagle feather or eagle plume.  Went over a proposed amendment for HB 1335 and compared 
it to the current South Dakota law with the committee.  
 
Rep Guggisberg:  Made a motion to adopt the amendment (See Attachment 1). 
 
Rep. Hager:  Seconded. 
 
Voice Vote taken:  Motion carried to amend HB 1335.   
 
Rep Pyle: made a motion to add emergency clause. 
 
Rep.  Hager:  Seconded. 
 
Rep Pyle:  Any further discussion?  Seeing none.  
 
Voice vote taken:  Motion carried to add Emergency clause to HB 1335. 
 
Hearing closed. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
 
Relating to student dress code policies. 
 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1 

 
Chairman Owens:  Opened the hearing on HB 1335. Do you have amendments? 
 
Rep. Pyle:  Explained the amendment for HB 1335. This is what we thought we could get 
through the chamber.   The sponsor was okay with the graduation part. (See Attachment 1) 
 
Chairman Owens:  The way you have it written merely it says they cannot prohibit at a 
minimum this and it does not restrict them from creating a dress code that allows other things 
or restricting other things. 
 
Rep. D. Johnson:  Made a motion to adopt the proposed amendment to HB 1335. 
 
Rep. Zubke:  Seconded 
 
Rep. M. Johnson:  So far I have not heard that anyone of Native American decent has had 
input on this amendment and for all or us to define what is tribal regalia is not energy well 
spent. I oppose the amendment.   I don’t think we should have a problem with us saying 
traditional tribal regalia or objects of cultural significance as defined by the local school 
district.  
 
Rep. Johnston: I will support the amendment but I will not support the bill.  I don’t think we 
should be in this business.  Let’s keep it at the local level.  
 
Rep. D. Johnson:  I was reading Mr. Davis’s amendments and they mirror what he brought 
to us and he is representing everyone concerned with this bill I think. I have no problem with 
these amendments.  
 
Rep. Guggisberg:  I asked Mr. Davis if he shared the amendment with the bill sponsor and 
he said yes and she was okay with it at that time. 
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Vice Chairman Schreiber- Beck:   If someone came in with a jingle dress and that is 
considered tribal regalia, I don’t think we should be the ones to determine that.  We did not 
receive a clarification how many schools have a problem with this.  That was supposed to 
come from some Tribal association that meets. 
 
Chairman Owens:  With this bill we are not defining what it is we are telling the local school 
board at a minimum what it is.  They can still authorize anything that they want.  We didn’t 
hear any opposition to this.  My problem with it was where it said “while participating school 
sanctioned or sponsored or events” seemed very broad to me.  From the state standpoint I 
just wanted to say “award ceremonies and graduation”.   Where if we leave it to the local 
district they could restrict everything as they can do now.  We are recognizing there is a right 
to a minimum amount.  
Rep. D. Johnson:  That is why I support this amendment because my main concern was the 
eagle feather and the plume and graduation.  Leave the rest of it back to the local districts if 
we want local control. 
 
Chairman Owens:  With this amendment they will still have local control of every little thing 
but they will not be able to restrict those two items at a graduation. 
 
Voice vote:  taken to adopt the amendment to HB 1335.   Motion carried. 
 
Chairman Owens:  Do we want to wait and get more information?  Any further discussion?  
Seeing none. 
 
Rep D. Johnson:  I move a Do Pass as amended on HB 1335. 
 
Rep. Zubke:  Seconded. 
 
Chairman Owens:   Any further discussion?  Seeing none.  The clerk will call the roll. 
 
Roll call vote taken:  Yes   11   No 1   Absent  2.  
 
Rep. Pyle:  Will carry the bill.  
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Adopted by the Education Committee 

January 30, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1335 

Page 1, line 2, after "policies" insert "; and to declare an emergency" 

Page 1, line 9, replace "while participating in a school sanctioned or sponsored activity or 
event" with "at a graduation ceremony. For purposes of this section "tribal regalia" or 
"object of cultural significance" means an eagle feather or eagle plume" 

Page 1, after line 9, insert: 

"SECTION 2. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency 
measure." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 19.0899.02001 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1335: Education Committee (Rep. Owens, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS 

AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (11 YEAS, 1 NAYS, 
2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1335 was placed on the Sixth order on the 
calendar. 

Page 1, line 2, after "policies" insert "; and to declare an emergency" 

Page 1, line 9, replace "while participating in a school sanctioned or sponsored activity or 
event" with "at a graduation ceremony. For purposes of this section "tribal regalia" or 
"object of cultural significance" means an eagle feather or eagle plume" 

Page 1, after line 9, insert: 

"SECTION 2. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency 
measure." 

Renumber accordingly 
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      Committee Clerk: Lynn Wolf 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A bill relating to student dress code policies; and to declare an emergency. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Att. #1-Buffalo; Att. #2-Hall; Att. #3-DeKok; Att. #4-Two-
Eagle 

 
Chairman Schaible: The hearing for HB 1335 is open. Representative Buffalo. 
 
(0:00:23) Representative Buffalo, Dist. 27: See Att. #1.  
 
Chairman Schaible: Are there any questions? Senator Oban. 
 
Senator Oban: I think it would be good for all of us to learn the importance of the eagle 
feather or the plume. Could you explain to us what that means? 
 
(3:13) Representative Buffalo: The importance and significance of eagle feathers and eagle 
plumes is the eagle is very important to our Native American traditions. Although we have 
over 500 different tribes, the eagle has been consistently universal across tribes, across 
borders. The eagle feather is primarily worn by the men and boys. The eagle plume is more 
of a fluffy, softer plume that is generally worn by women and girls. These items are given to 
individuals if they have done great deeds. I first received my eagle plume when I was a high 
school senior and it was given to me by a member of Gripping Earth clan that I belong to. I 
am a member of the Mandan, Hidatsa and Arikara (MHA) Nation. Elders, people that have 
that right within your community, veterans provide that honor to people that have done great 
deeds in their communities. In this case, it would be crossing a big – huge – milestone, life 
event, such as high school graduation.  
 
Chairman Schaible: Other questions.  
 
(5:05) Willow Hall, Lives in Dist. 47: See Att. #2.  
 
(6:33) Melanie Angel Moniz: See tape for Native Language spoken. My name is Butterfly 
Woman, my English name is Melanie Angel Moniz. I come to you this morning to support HB 
1335. As an auntie, I have a nephew who will be graduating in two years and these are 



Senate Education Committee  
HB 1335 
3/4/2019 
Page 2  
   

milestones for us and it is an honor. I urge you to pass this bill. It is going to bring the 
community together. It is much needed for us learn to get together and unite. Thank you. 
 
Chairman Schaible: Any questions? Thank you. Other testimony for the bill. 
 
(7:26) Carel Two Eagles: I stand in favor of 1335. The rate of graduation from high school 
amongst our youth is extremely low. The rate of suicide and kinds of self-abuse is pretty high. 
In addition to our cultural heritage recognition, we are citizens of the United States, as well 
as of our own nations. We have dual citizenship courtesy of the Schneider act of 1924. This 
is only appropriate since it was our land first. Our people have volunteered for the military at 
far higher rates of all other races on turtle island combined. Granting us the vote was 
recognition of that. As citizens of this nation, then we have first amendment rights and to not 
be allowed to express our cultural heritage through wearing eagle feathers and regalia is to 
violate our first amendment rights - freedom of speech, freedom of expression, freedom of 
religion. Our youth need all the help they can get. We get a tremendous amount of static – 
for lack of a better word – to deny our traditions. I am a great grandmother and I still get it. If 
I had a dollar for every time somebody in ND said, “If you would drop treaty rights and 
traditionalism, we’d make you really rich.” I would already be really rich. That’s terrible. I mean 
I have put up with this for a lifetime. These kids are not as tough as I am – yet. I keep hoping, 
but you know. But I think this is certainly a worthy bill. We are not going to go away and we 
are not going to become extinct. Recommending Do Pass on this bill will provide a lot more 
power to the individual – a feeling of power. That is what keeps us going. It keeps anybody 
going when times are tough. Senator Oban asked about the significance of eagle – (Native 
language spoken.) I walk with a pipe. The pipe is holy. The reason we use eagle is because 
eagle flies higher than any other bird and carries our prayers to the spirits more directly and 
more quickly. If there is a prayer that is unanimous throughout Indian country, it is that we 
have more kids that graduate in high school and go on to college. I have a sister who was 
fostered out and she was battered. She didn’t graduate high school. She hung out with a 
bunch of people who were eventually somehow motivated and they went and got two-year 
degrees and they kind of dragged her along. After she had her two-year degree, they decided 
they were going to go for a four-year degree and dragged her along again. She really didn’t 
go that willingly, she kept saying “I can’t, I can’t” and I am in the background saying “Of course 
you can. Go do it, I did it – you can do it.” Well, she got a four-year degree in Special 
Education and people from the state came to her. By then she had learned to talk back. They 
said to her “We need more people with advanced degrees.”. She said. “We need more people 
with high school diplomas.” They said, “we will pay you a stipend to go on.” Today she has 
two of them – one in intellectual development and the other in Special Education. I am so 
proud of her, I could just pop. She was a poster child for something out of UND called “Not 
Beads and Feathers Anymore” We need more like that, we really do. I am asking that you 
recommend Do Pass.  
 
Chairman Schaible: Thank you.  
 
(12:14) Sheridan McNeil: See tape for Native Language spoken. My Dakota name is 
Respects the People Woman. My English name is Sheridan McNeil. I am from Bismarck and 
from Standing Rock. Today, I stand here in support of HB 1335. I want to share a little story 
– we are story tellers – I was given my Dakota name by my grandmother. She watched me 
at one of our sacred ceremonies interacting with people and things. She saw me through her 
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eyes as respecting all the people that were there. For me, that is a big responsibility and a 
reminder for me every day in how I need to interact to honor my grandmother, to honor my 
family, and to honor my people. When I was given that name, I was also given an eagle 
plume in honor of that name and in honor of my grandmother. I brought my plume here today 
to show what a plume looks like and what we are discussing. I wear this at our sacred 
ceremonies and anytime I am in prayer. I wear this as a reminder of who I am and how my 
grandmother seen me and how I want to make her and my family proud. I wear this so my 
kids know who we are and where we come from. I also brought with today my son’s eagle 
feathers. My son was given his eagle feather for his name – one of them was given for his 
name – that he received. His name was passed down – our family comes from Inkpaduta 
(Scarlet Tip). That is our ancestor. He was given his name from one of Inkpaduta’s sons. 
When we are given a name in our culture, we are usually given an eagle feather or another 
item of significance depending on where your culture is from. That helps create driving with 
in our culture, within our youth to empower them and give them that sense of belonging and 
so they always know where we are from. The other eagle feather he received was from his 
father who has passed away from colon cancer. His father graduated from the UND School 
of Law. He was a barred attorney. He was the attorney for Standing Rock. His grandmother 
and grandfather on his father’s side wanted my son to have it. He is his only son. So, my son 
also carries his father’s eagle feather with him. I share these stories with you that through a 
part of education, so we are learning about one and other’s cultures and so that you don’t 
think it is just something randomly that we are asking – for the committee to pass so that we 
are not prohibited from wearing things like this when we have a great accomplishment such 
as graduations. There are other items of cultural significance, but as the bill stands right now, 
it is for eagle feathers and eagle plumes. Inclusion of our cultures in schools creates healther 
and stronger communities. Inclusion in anything helps when we stand together united – helps 
create healthier, stronger communities. In ND, we want that for all of our youth. We want to 
send that message to all of youth. We had some youth here in the room earlier, and it also 
send a positive message to thjem. If we say that we are prohibiting anything for any of our 
students to wear that is of cultural significance, what kind of message is that sending to them? 
We want to keep the message – the message is positive and show our youth that we are 
proud of ND – all of ND and who we are and we stand united with everyone regardless of 
your race, religion or color. Just kind of a comparison – there is a lot of – when we talk about 
things that are sacred to us – they are so prescious to us it is sacred and maybe in the 
Christian world it is something that is holy. That is exactly what these are to us. They are 
sacred and holy to us and we hold them very dear to our hearts.  
 
Chairman Schaible: You mentioned that the one feather was given by his father. Who else 
gives these feathers? Can you explain that a little bit? 
 
Sheridan McNeil: Right – I think Representative Buffalo had touched on that briefly and so 
like I had said earlier, my grandmother gave them to me. My grandfather gave the feathers 
to my sons. It can be anyone of our elders that can give a feather. Dreams are really 
significant in our culture. If someone has a dream to give a person a name or for one of their 
accomplishments that person is allowed to give them a feather. Veterans are held in high 
regard within our culture as they are anywhere and veterans also can give a feather. Feathers 
can be given in the form of appreciation, an accomplishment, - it is a very sacred gift when 
someone gives you a feather and it is a great reminder of who we are as a people and 
everything our culture stands for.  
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Chairman Schaible: Seeing no other questions, thank you. Other testimony in favor of the 
bill. 
 
(18:39) Lisa Casarez: I testify in favor of 1335. See tape for Native Language spoken. Good 
morning everybody, my relatives. My Hidatsa name is Pink Blossom. I work and teach at the 
same school I graduated from in Mandaree, ND on the Fort Berthold Reservation. It would 
be with tremendous graditude to have you support this bill in support of indigenous children 
and people in ND. Symbolism and ceremony are important in every culture with tribal cultures 
being no exception. To introduce this section in the ND Century Code wold be a positive and 
more inclusive amendment and the honor child practices that are practiced even before the 
century code. There is one story I would like to share with you. A few years ago, the Grand 
Forks Public School System granted the use of eagle feathers and eagle plumes after it was 
brought to light that teachers and admin at the Grand Forks Central High School tried to 
prohibit graduating seniors from using beadwork and an eagle feather during graduation. He 
was able to walk with his feather only after changing at the last minute without permission. I 
applaud this young man’s actions who is now a student at Arizona State University. He did 
not allow admin to prohibit his freedom of expression, his culture identity and pride. With the 
passing of this bill, many more youth should not have to resort to breaking school policy to 
assert their culture identity and pride during an educational milestone. As a teacher, 
especially on the reservation, we don’t have many things – laundry mat or even a grocery 
store. We do have our culture, our – this is encouraged, but I also think it would be great for 
schools everywhere to honor this for all of our indigenous students and perhaps also culture 
expression for other students who come from different backgrounds.  
 
Chairman Schaible: Thank you. Other testimony in favor of the bill.  
 
(21:16) Barbara Villella: I am here as an Italian American woman. My name is Barbara 
Villella in support of my neighbors and all of the communities that reside in the United States. 
I am never told that I can wear a cross necklace, but not a cross headband. I am never told 
that I can wear earrings, but not something else. I feel that I want to support my neighbors 
and I also know that as a daughter of – a great granddaughter of an immigrant from Ellis 
Island, we had to go through some things that no one should have to go through as far as – 
toning down your culture to fit in. I think that in celebration, in times of sadness, in times of 
where certain things we may not understand, I don’t think it is anyone’s right to say that you 
can’t wear something so significant as well as I would love this bill to include all regalia that 
is culturally appropriate. It is a great start – eagle plume and eagle feathers – my neighbors, 
I support them and I support their quest for more justice in all realms of social relevance. I 
would like to be here to show that I think that this is a great step in the right direction. We 
have a long way to go for our neighbors and I think that this conversation is an excellent one 
to begin, but it is definitely not the end. I want to make sure my neighbors feel supported and 
so I am here today to show that support. Thank you. 
 
Chairman Schaible: Other testimony in favor of the bill.  
 
(23:09) Janessa Thompson: I live in New Salem, but I grew up in Rugby, ND. I have a lot 
of friends that grew up on the reservation. Although I didn’t experience it, I got to see a lot of 
the additional challenges that they go through. I think this bill – I support this bill in that it 
allows for them to fully express their culture in something that is important to them and that 
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is a really big milestone and they may have to face more challenges than other people do. I 
would like to see some of those challenges become less in the future. I think it is important 
to remember that all cultures bring really valuable perspectives to the table and different 
perspectives and that by allowing them to express their cultures in the way that is meaningful 
to them allows them to be more confident and able to share that perspective with us.  
 
Chairman Schaible: Other testimony in favor of the bill.  
 
Amy DeKok, ND School Boards Association: See Att. #3.   
 
Chairman Schaible: Other testimony in favor of the bill. Agency testimony. Any testimony in 
opposition to the bill. Seeing none, we will close the hearing.  
 
Additional testimony was submitted via email after the hearing by Carel Two-Eagle. See Att. #4.  
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HB 1335 Relating to Student Dress Code Policies 
House Education (Coteau A) 

Hello. My name is Chelsea Schmitt. I am the lineal descendant of Turtle Mountain Band 
of Chippewa enrolled member, Barbara Schmitt. I graduated from Bismarck High School in 
Bismarck, ND in 2015. I am here to speak about why wearing Native American regalia, like the 
eagle feather or plume, to school events, specifically graduation, is important to Native American 
students and their culture. 

In December 2013, my mom was getting ready to graduate from North Dakota State 
University with her Doctorate Degree in Education. Part of her getting ready for graduation was 
to take out her eagle feather and have a family friend bless it with a Native American prayer. She 
began telling me all about the importance of the eagle feather and plumes and why they are so 
important to the Native American culture. How the eagle feather and plumes are given as a gift 
to Native Americans when they reach a milestone in their lives, like high school graduation. I 
remember that I immediately started planning what color beads I wanted on the base of my eagle 
feather when I was to graduate. 

In the fall of 2014 I started my senior year. Of course like all other high school seniors, 
graduation and other senior events were at the very center of all of the conversations that my 
friends and I had. I was speaking with another Native American student about graduation when I 
asked if they would also be wearing their eagle feather or plume. Their reply was that to their 
understanding that we could NOT wear our eagle feathers or plumes to graduation. To say I was 
upset was an understatement. I went home and asked my mom what we were going to do. She 
told me that it was not up to her to help me. That if I really wanted to wear my eagle feather at 
graduation, I needed to do this on my own. The only help I received from my mom was that I 
should get in contact with the Student Parent Liaison at Bismarck High School. 

When I first met with the Student Parent Liaison, they told me that there were several 
Native American students that had come to them with the concern of the eagle feathers or 
plumes. From that year and years prior. I told them that I was willing to go to the school board to 
fight for myself and other Native American students so that we would be allowed to wear eagle 
feathers and plumes at our high school graduation. 

With help from the Student Parent Liaison, and six other Native American students, we 
went to work on the issue at hand. We did our research, we made slideshow presentations, and 
we requested a meeting with the school board and the principals from all four high schools in 
Bismarck. We all took our turns explaining why wearing an eagle feather or plume to our high 
school graduation would be important to us as Native Americans and to all of the Native 
American students that would come after us. 

Approximately two month prior to graduation, each of us received a hand written letter 
from the superintendent of Bismarck schools letting us know that we achieved our goal. We got 
to wear our eagle feather or plume to graduation. Like my Native American family members 
have in the past, I got to wear a piece of my culture, a part of who I am, on a very important day 
in my life. A year later, my younger sister graduated from Bismarck High School. Per the request 
from the school board and principals during the presentation meeting, my sister and other Native 
American students that planned to wear an eagle feather or plume were required to fill out a form 
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stating if they would be wearing an eagle feather or plume or not since there was a concern about 
other students taking advantage of the added adornment. 

In Fredrick, South Dakota, a family friend transferred to Aberdeen, South Dakota for 
school in her last semester of her senior year just so she would be able to wear her eagle feather 
at graduation. 

Eagle feathers are not taken lightly in the Native American culture. They must have a 
special blessing before they are to be worn or displayed in any way. And an elder must perform a 
small prayer or ceremony before it is picked up off the ground if it has fallen. They are a symbol 
that indicates strength and honor. It is not just a decoration. Eagles and their feathers are held 
sacred by tribal nations. As I stated before, they are only given as gifts during important times in 
a person's life. 

In the Native American culture, receiving an eagle feather is as important as receiving a 
diploma. It signifies the achievement of an important educational journey, and the honor that the 
student has brought to themselves, their family, and their entire tribal community. 

Wearing an eagle feather or plume to high school graduation was not just important for 
me. It is important for all Native American students around the state of North Dakota. Past and 
present. By voting on and passing this bill, it means that our Native American culture is 
becoming more recognized. That what is important to us is not just being swept under the rug. 

At the end of my presentation, I have included photos of myself, my classmates, my 
mom, and my younger sister for a visual of that the eagle feathers and plumes will possibly look 
like. Thank you 
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Chair Owens and House Education Committee Members, 

My name is Ruth Buffalo and I represent District 27 in south Fargo. 

HB 1335: Dress code - Inclusion of traditional tribal regalia and 
objects of cultural significance. The board of a school district or a 
school may not establish a dress code policy that includes prohibiting a 
student from wearing traditional tribal regalia or objects of cultural 
significance while participating in a school sanctioned or sponsored 
activity or event. 

HB 1335 would allow high school students to wear their eagle feathers 
and eagle plumes during the celebration of their academic 
achievements and milestones such as a high school graduation 
ceremony. 

Every year, Native high school graduates seek to express their 
academic achievement and cultural beliefs by wearing eagle feathers 
as a part of their graduation ceremonies. Although most high schools 
recognize the academic and sacred importance associated with 
wearing eagle feathers at graduation, there still are a few schools and 
districts that do not allow this tradition. https://www.narf.org/graduation/ 

"The principal said I have to make sure that [my eagle feather] is 
hidden and that nobody can see it and it is out of sight. It makes 
me feel like I have to hide who I am. '�Waverly Wilson (Fort 
Belknap Indian Community) 

This bill will not only provide information to students of what is allowed, 
but also guidance for school boards. Each year students and family's 
have to advocate and navigate through the educational system which 
causes anxiety and stress while seeking permission to wear their tribal 
regalia which includes eagle feathers and eagle plumes at a school 
sanctioned event such as a high school graduation ceremony. 

Students and family's should not have to worry whether or not they will 
be allowed to celebrate their heritage by wearing their tribal regalia 
which includes eagle feathers and eagle plumes during a school 
sanctioned event such as a high school graduation ceremony. 

It's important to allow students to celebrate such achievements while 
being allowed to wear sacred items such as eagle feathers and eagle 
plumes. Our young people thrive while being able to embrace their 
Native American heritage. Our young people have high rates of suicide 
and low rates of graduation, please help up us celebrate our Native 
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American students' very existence and achievements by allowing them 
to wear their tribal regalia such as eagle feathers and eagle plumes 
during a school sanctioned event such as a high school graduation. 

"Graduation from high school is an especially significant occasion for Native 

students and families, considering that the American Indian and Alaska 

Native high school graduation rate is 67 percent, the lowest of any racial or 

ethnic demographic across all schools." 1 Exec. Office of the President, 

Native Youth Report, at 16 ( December 2014), 

2'https://www.whitehouse.gov/sites/default/files/docs/ 

There is great importance of sacred items, but as a parent with a public 
health background, there are protective factors within embracing our 
indigenous culture and identity which in turn will help contribute to 
student success. 

I urge you to vote yes on the passage of HB 1335. Mr. Chair and 
members of the House Education Committee, I would be happy to 
answer any questions. Thank you. 



this Adminis · has undertaken policy and 
procedural changes to facilitate the collection and 

distribution of scarce eagle bodies and parts far this 
purpose. " 

- President Clinton, Executive Memorandum 6 

Federal law and policy has long recognized the 
religious and ceremonial significance of eagle 
feathers to Native peoples. The Bald and 
Golden Eagle Protection Act of 1 962 allows 
tribal members to continue to include eagle 
parts in their religious ceremonies by providing 
special exemptions to American Indians and 
Alaska Natives. 7 Also, for more than twenty 
years, the federal government has followed an 
established system for distributing eagle feathers 
to Native peoples for religious and ceremonial 
purposes.7 Additionally, U.S.  Department of 
Justice policies are guided by the recognition 
that " [fjrom time immemorial, many Native 
Americans have viewed eagle feathers and other 
bird parts as sacred elements of their religious 
and cultural traditions ."8 

Most Schools Allow Native Students 

to Wear Eagle Feathers 

Given the Native American reverence for eagles 
and the high honor represented by graduation, 
most schools recognize that commencement 
ceremonies are an appropriate setting for Native 
students to wear an eagle feather with dignity. 
Most schools that have faced this question in 
the past few decades have understood that 
perrruttmg Native students to wear eagle 
feathers is not only good policy, but the right 

thing to do. While schools approve 
Native students' requests to wear an eagle 
feather on a case-by-case basis, some districts 
have adopted policies allowing all Native 
graduates to have this distinct honor. These 
policies range from specifically accommodating 
Native students, to permitting student 
organizations that represent certain cultural 
groups to approve and/ or distribute culturally­
appropriate honor chords, which include eagle 
feathers for Native students. 

"It's my belief it is our responsibility to be respectful of 
each student's spiritual and cultural beliefs. Not just to 

enable [cultural expression] but to respect and honor their 
heritage. [This Assiniboine/Lakota Sioux graduate} will 
become an example to other Native American students. 

Her wearing the eagle feather will say, 'This is a goal you 
can reach and be a member of your tribe at the same 

time. ' "  
-Superintendent Joyce Henstrand, Reynolds School 

District, Fairview, OR 9 

"I'm so excited to get to embrace my culture and that it 
gets to be part of my graduation day . . .  I'm so thankful 

that  our superintendent allowed us to wear our feathers. It 
is a big deal to us to be able to do this and wear them 

proudly. " 
-Allison Tumer (Cherokee) ro 
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Source: Eagle Feathers First Banned, Then Allowed at 
California Graduation, Indian Country Today, June 
1 6, 201 4. 

Every year, Native high school students 
from across  the country seek to express 
their individual and tribal religious beliefs 
and celebrate their personal academic 
achievements by wearing an eagle feather at 
graduation. Graduation from high school is 
an especially significant occasion for Native 
students and families ,  considering that the 
American Indian and Alaska Native high 
school graduation rate is 67 percent, the 
lowest of any racial or ethnic demographic 
across  all schools. 1 While most public 
school districts permit Native students to 
wear eagle feathers during commencement 
ceremonies ,  some school districts do not 
allow it. This guide seeks to educate schools 
about why it is culturally and religiously 
important for Native students to be allowed 
to wear eagle fe ers during graduation. 

Religious Significance 

''Both bald and golden eagles (and their feathers) are 
revered and considered sacred in our cultural and 
religious tradition . . .  The gift of an eagle feather to 
wear at a ceremo'!)' is a great honor given in 
recognition of an important transition and has great 
spiritual meaning. When given in honor of a 
graduation ceremo'!)', the eagle feather also recognizes 
academic achievement and school-related success. Eagle 

feathers are worn with pride and respect. " 

- Isidro Gali, Vice Chairperson of the Pit River T ribl 

From time immemorial, many tribal nations 
have viewed eagles and their feathers as sacred 
elements of their religious traditions. In many 
Native cultures, eagle feathers are equal to the 
cross or the Bible in western religions . Eagle 
feathers represent honesty, truth, majesty, 
strength, courage, wisdom, power and freedom. 
Native peoples believe that as eagles roam the 
sky, they have a special connection with and are 
messengers to God. 

"The principal said I have to make sure 
that [my eagle feather] is hidden and that 
nobody can see it and it is out of sight. It 
makes me feel like I have to hide who I 

am." 

- Waverly Wilson 
(Fort Belknap Indian Community) 3 

Ceremonial Significance 

''As a Native American, the eagle feather is a 
rymbol given on!J for important milestones in one 's 
life and [is] worn to signijj, · achievements. I had 

not on!J worked tireless!J to ensure that I would 
graduate 1vith my peers, but I secured an 
apprenticeship after graduation and received the 
master Councilor position . . . .  I wish to 1vear and 
displqy the feather on the tassel on my cap during 
graduation as a rymbol of my hard work, and to 
convry my [t]ribe 's recognition of my academic 
achievements and the deep appreciation I have for my 
Native American cultural and spiritual traditions. " 

- Christian Titman (Pit River Tribe) 5 

Eagle feathers are given only in times of great 
honor. Many tribes present their young people 
with eagle feathers upon graduation from high 
school to signify the achievement of this 
important educational journey and the honor 
the graduate brings to his or her family, 
community, and tribal nation. For many Native 
students, rece1vmg an eagle feather in 
recognition of graduation is as significant as 
earning the diploma or akin to an honor society 
stole . When a person is given an eagle feather 
for a certain occasion, it is often seen as a sign 
of disrespect or dishonor to not wear the 
feather for that occasion 

Federal Law Recognizes the 
Sacredness of 

Eagle Feathers to Tribal Nations 

''Eagle feathers hold a sacred place in Native 
American culture and religious practices. Because of 
the feathers' significance to Native American 
heritage and consistent 1vith due respect for the 
government-to-government relationship between the 
Federal and Native American tribal governments, 7" c!; 
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Native Verd igris  sen iors to Lik j [ s;rnre ] 

wear eag le  feathers at g raduation 

BY L ENZY KREH B IEL- B U RTON 
S pec i a l  Correspondent 
05/1 1/2015  08 :00 AM 

VERDIG RIS, Ok l a .  - When 
Verd i g r i s  H i g h  Schoo l  hosts i ts 
2015 g raduat ion  on M ay 15 ,  a 
few extra items  w i l l  be  m ixed i n  
among the caps, gowns a n d  
tasse l s .  

For the  fi rst t ime  s i nce the  h i g h 
schoo l  was re-esta b l i s hed i n  t he  
l ate 1990s, N at ive Ameri ca n 
sen io rs at Verd i g ri s  w i l l  be 
a l l owed to wea r an eag l e  feathe r  
with the i r g ra d u at ion  rega l i a .  O f  
the 100 students s l ated to  
g raduate, 26 a re N at ive, 
i n c l ud i ng Che ro kee N at ion  
c i t izens .  

"Th i s  i s  a g reat oppo rtu n ity fo r 

Some Verd i g r i s  H i g h  Schoo l  sen io rs 
America n ho l d  t he  ced a r  boxes that  
feathe rs .  The  s en i o rs g et to wea r thE  
g ra d u at ion  o n  May 15 .  L ENZY KREH 
B U RTON/SPECIAL CORRESPO N D E N  

ou r  k ids  t o  remembe r  t he i r  
h er itag e, "  t he  s choo l ' s  J o hnson-O 'Ma l l ey coord i nator Cha r l e s  N ad a l  
s a i d .  " Most of u s  a re Che rokee. We  have some othe r  tr i bes, i n c l u d i n g  
Pawnee, S h awnee, O s age  a n d  Kiowa. When  i t  a l l  comes down to  i t, 
we' re a l l  b rothe rs a n d  s i sters a nd  th i s  g ives just a moment ' s  wort h  of 
u n if icat ion . "  

The d i st r i ct ' s  JOM P ro g ra m  has  been  d i str i bu t i ng  eag l e  feathe rs to  
Verd i g ri s  s en i o rs fo r f ive years .  Severa l of the prog ra m 's  act ive Pa rent  
Comm ittee mem bers h ave a sen i o r  at home and  reached out  to  
a d m i n i strato rs a l most s i x  months  before commencement exerc i ses .  

"We saw the sto r ies  abou t  the  pu shback at Sem i no l e  a n d  K i ngfi s he r  
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a n d  Second -C l a ss 

M id s h i pman  Coby Bae . . .  

Read More 

REPORT: Oklahoma lagging 

in P-er-student SP-ending 

BY ASSOCIATED PRESS 
12/20/2018  04:20 PM 
The reg i o n  spent an 

average  of rou . . .  

Read More 



1/21/2019 Native Verd igris seniors to wear eagle feathers at graduation 

(h i g h  schoo l s) l a st yea r when the i r  stu dents wanted to wea r feathers 
and  we d i d n 't want to have to dea l  with that r ight  before g rad uat ion , "  
JOM Pa rent Com m ittee Cha i rwoman J enn ifer Ayers sa id .  "So we pr i nted 
off the stor ies, took them with u s  a nd  a sked i f  it wou l d  be a p rob l em . "  

When Verd i g ri s  offi c i a l s  gave the g reen l i g ht, Ayers and  othe r  JOM 
pa rents s pent the spr i ng  semeste r p ract i c i ng  on  turkey feathers before 
p repa ri ng  the eag l e  feathers, i n c l u d i ng hand-sew ing the beads  and  
bucksk i n fri nge on  each  qu i l l .  

The i r  hand iwork was p resented t o  the sen i o rs on  May 2 ,  a l o n g  with a 
ceda r  box to p rotect the feather  a nd  a l etter from Nada l , exp l a i n i n g  the 
feather 's s i g n ifi cance .  

" I 'm so excited to get to emb race my cu l tu re and that it gets to be pa rt 
of my g raduat ion day, "  sen io r  A l i son  Tu rner sa id .  "It was so mea n i ng fu l  
a n d  awesome t o  see one  o f  m y  (su bst itute) teachers worki ng  on  the 
beadwork. She was so exc i ted to do  i t  fo r us because she  knew how 
exc i ted and happy we were that we get the chance to do  th is .  I 'm so 
thankfu l that our su per i ntendent a l l owed u s  to wea r our feathers .  It i s  a 
b ig dea l  to us  to be ab l e  to do  th i s  a nd  wea r them p roud ly . " 

The sen iors a l so each rece ived an app l i cat ion  fo r a permit to obta i n  
t h e i r  own eag l e  feathers as  way to keep the  t rad it ion go i ng  for futu re 
c l a sses at Verd ig r is .  U nde r  federa l  l aw, c i t izens of federa l ly recogn ized 
tr i bes who a re 18 and  o lde r  may app ly to receive and keep eag l e  
feathers and  pa rts fo r re l i g i ous  reasons from the Nat iona l W i l d l i fe 
Serv ice 's Nat iona l  Eag l e  Repos i tory .  

"It ' s  important to me that you a l l  want to be a pa rt of th is , "  Nada l  to l d  
the sen io rs .  "I hope tha t  you  a l l  cons i de r  a pp ly i ng  fo r a pe rm i t  and  he l p  
us  cont i n ue  th i s  trad it ion . "  
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Kansas 

Triba l Rega l ia a nd  Objects of Cu ltura l  S ign ificance;  p roh ibits state agenc ies a n d  m u n ic ipa l it ies from 
proh i b it ing i n d iv id ua l s  from wea ring tr iba l rega l i a  o r  objects of cu l tura l  s ign ifica nce at pub l ic events. 

The b i l l  defi nes  the fo l lowing terms:  

• "Mun ic ipa l i ty" means  a ny county, townsh ip, c ity, schoo l  d istrict, o r  other po l i tica l o r  tax ing subd ivis ion 
of the state, or a ny agency, a utho rity, i nstitut ion ,  or other  i nstrumenta l ity the reof; 

• "Pub l i c  event" mea ns  a n  event he ld  or  sponsored by a state agency o r  mun ic i pa l ity, i n c l ud i ng, but not 
l im ited to, a n  awa rd ceremony, a graduat ion ceremony, or a meet ing of a gove rn ing body; and  

• "State agency" mea n s  the  State of  Ka nsas a nd a ny department o r  bra nch of state gove rnment, or  any 
agency, a utho rity, i n st itut ion, o r  other  instrumenta l ity thereof. The b i l l  requ i res  the Secreta ry of  State to 
se nd a copy of the b i l l  to each tr iba l government o n  the fou r  rese rvat ion s  in Ka nsas o n  the effective date 
of the b i l l .  The b i l l  states the Ka nsas Legis latu re dec la res  the pu rpose of the b i l l  is to he lp  fu rther the 
State's recogn it ion  of the d ist inct a nd un ique cu l tura l  heritage of Nat ive America ns  a nd the State's 
com m itment to p reserv ing Nat ive America ns' cu l tura l  integrity. 

South Dakota 

FOR AN ACT ENT ITLED,  An Act to proh ib it certa i n  government entit ies from restricti ng the 
wea ring  of tr i ba l rega l i a  du ring  certa i n  events . 
BE  IT E NACTED BY THE LEG I S LATU RE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA: 

Section  1 .  That the code be amended by add ing  a N EW SECT ION to read :  
The  state , any  o f  its po l itica l subdiv is ions ,  mun ic ipa l it ies or  subd ivis ions thereof sha l l  not proh ibit 

any  person from wea ri ng  trad i t iona l  tri ba l  rega l i a  or objects of cu ltura l  s ign ifi cance at a school 
honori ng  o r  g raduation  ceremony.  

-H B  1 � ?,5 
1 , "l 1 - f tt'  

� t.,  
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Cha i rman Owens and members of the House Education com mittee, my name is Alexis Baxley. I am  

the  execut ive d i rector of t he  North Dakota School Boards Association .  NDSBA represents a l l  178 North 

Dakota pub l i c  school  d i str icts and the i r  boards. I am here today in opposit ion to HB 1335. 

We support what we be l ieve is the intent of Representative Buffa lo's b i l l .  We bel ieve students shou ld 

be ab le  to express themse lves a nd the i r  cu ltu ra l  identity du ri ng i mportant events. However, the broad nature 

of th i s  b i l l  has us concerned. 

F i rst, the terms "tr iba l regal ia or objects of cu ltura l  sign ificance" leave a lot of room for 

i nterpretation .  Our ma in  concerns cente r  a round the poss ib i l ity of someone using the b road-nature of th is 

• term to take advantage of the provision, and i n  turn, become a d i straction .  Recently, the B ismarck Pub l ic  

Schoo l  D istr ict adopted a po l i cy that a l lows for a n  eagle feather to be worn du ri ng graduat ion by students of 

Native American a ncestry. Identifying specific p ieces of triba l rega l i a  wou ld  a l low students to honor their 

cu l ture a nd make for c leare r  pol icy. 

• 

We a re a lso concerned with the language "a school sanct ioned o r  sponso red a ctivity o r  event." 

Aga in ,  the broad nature of this language is troub lesome. Sport ing events would be inc luded in this la nguage . 

The wea ri ng of a nyth i ng outside of the approved un iform cou ld  be a safety haza rd, and  may result i n  

forfei ture o f  t he  com petition .  last year, South Dakota adopted s im i l a r  legis lat ion and  referenced "graduation 

or  awards ceremonies" i nstead. We bel ieve th is is  a better approach . 

Attached to my test imony you wi l l  find suggested l anguage for a n  a mendment.  Further defi n i ng the 

afo rementioned terms a nd l anguage in the same or  a s imi l a r  way wou ld  create less oppo rtunity for confl ict, 

confusion, or d istraction. We'd be happy to work with Representative Buffalo and the com mittee on th is 

l anguage . 

N DSBA u rges the committee to consider amend ing th is b i l l  o r  give it a do not pass. I would be happy 

to answer a ny questions the committee may have . 



• 

• 

• 

H B  1335 - Proposed amendment 

SECTION  1 .  A new sect ion to chapter 15.1-19 of the North Dakota Century Code is created a nd 

enacted as fol l ows: 

Dress code - Inclusion of traditional tribal regalia and objects of cultural significance. 

The board of a schoo l d istrict or a school  may not estab l ish a dress code pol i cy that inc ludes 

proh ibit i ng a stude nt from wear ing traditiona l  triba l rega l ia or  objects of cu ltura l  s ign ificance� 

13artiei13ating in a sehool sanetionea OF s13ons0Feel aeti>.1ity OF event. at a school honori ng or  graduat ion 

ce remony. For purposes of th is sect ion the term, tr i ba l  rega l i a  or  object of cu l tura l  s ign ifica nce, means 

an  eagle feather o r  eagle plume . 

He 1 335' 
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Testimony in  Support of HB  1335 
Submitted by Cheryl Kary, Ph .D. 

Sacred P ipe Resource Center 
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My name  is Che ry l  Ka ry a nd I am  the D i rector of the Sacred P i pe Resou rce Center, a 
l oca l non -p rofit se rv ing  the America n  I n d ia n  popu l at ion i n  B i sma rck a nd Manda n .  

I a m  he re t o  offer my  su pport fo r H B  1335,  a b i l l  for i nc l us ion  of t rad it iona l  t ri ba l  
rega l ia and  objects of  cu ltu ra l  s ign if ica nce .  I be l i eve th i s  b i l l  i s  a n  exce l l ent 
opport u n ity to b u i l d  b ridges between h u ma n  be i ngs who ca l l  No rth  Da kota home.  

Today, i n  Ma nd a n , the F ive Nat ions Art i s  host i ng a g rand  re-open i ng of  the sto re 
u nder  new owne rs h i p .  A group  of loca l Nat ive America n women has  fo rmed a Nat ive 
coope rat ive a n d  ha s  ta ken ove r operat ion from the  Fort Li n co l n  Fou ndat ion . I 
ment ion th i s  beca use th i s  group  - Nat ive Art i sts U n ited ( NAU ) - has  a m iss ion that 
goes beyond  a reta i l  store . 

NAU was formed to p romote Nat ive a rt, foster new Nat ive a rt i sts, a nd  - pert i nent 
to t h is i ss ue - p rovide  ed ucat ion to the gene ra l  p ub l ic a bout Nat ive a rt .  The h a l lma rk 
of Nat ive a rt i s  t hat i s  i nextr ica b ly i ntertw ined with who we a re as  a peop le .  Nat ive 
a rt is a s  d iverse a s  N at ive peop le  beca use it is a refl ect ion of ou r  cu l tu ra l  ways, the 
sym bo ls  t hat rep resent our be l iefs a nd t rad it iona l  knowledge, and the mean i ngs 
that we make of t he  n atu ra l  worl d .  Nat ive a rt does not exist sepa rate ly as someth i ng 
to be s im p ly  a d m i red . I f  you th i n k  back i n  h istory, we never had  pa i nt i ngs that h u ng 
on  ou r  t i p i  wa l l s .  Beca use of the c lose con nect ion between a rt a nd i dent ity, Nat ive 
a rt has  a lways been p rima ri ly fu nct iona l .  I t  is why, h isto rica l ly, you saw us pa i nt ou r  
t i p is, pa i nt o u r  ho rses, put q u i l lwork on  ou r  moccas i n s  a nd  d resses, o u r  conta i ners, 
o u r  c rad l eboa rd s, a n d  even ou r  ch i l d ren 's  toys . It is why, i n  o u r  contempora ry wor ld ,  
you see us  wea r beaded a nd q u i l led jewel ry, have Nat ive des igns on  our c loth i ng, 
wea r r i bbon s ki rts a nd s h i rts . It is why we bead th i ngs l i ke d rumst icks fo r s i ng i ng, 
wr it i ng  pens, sa l t  a nd pepper sha kers, even b i ngo da bbers !  These th i ngs a re 
com mon  p l a ce, fu n ct iona l  items that we ma ke ou rs by attach i ng ou r  a rt to them .  
N at ive a rt i s  an  o utwa rd reflect ion of  our  cu lt u ra l  u ndersta nd i ngs and  ways . Each 
co lo r  a n d  each d es ign  have mean i ng a nd pu rpose .  
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I t  i s  im porta nt to u ndersta nd the pr i nc ip le  of fu nct iona l ity of Nat ive a rt beca use itis 
what is at the hea rt of th is b i l l .  

We u nde rsta nd the des i re for u n iform ity i n  schoo l -based fu nct ions such a 
g rad uat ions .  However, we must a l so recogn ize that not every cu ltu re va l ues 
comp lete conform ity in these occas ions .  And maki ng room for that recogn it ion is 
the  h a l lma rk of a n  ed ucated, i nfo rmed, a nd  cu ltu ra l ly competent representat ive 
body. It is poss ib l e  for these two, compet ing  va l ue systems to co-exist - cu ltu ra l  
i n d iv id u a l ity expressed with i n  a n  occas ion fo r u n iform ity. I f  you've ever been t o  a 
g rad uat ion ceremony at a Tri ba l Col l ege, you wi l l  see that the freedom to cu lt u ra l ly 
se l f-express does not impede on the so l emn ity or  u n iform ity of the grad uat ion 
ceremony o r  a ny other  forma l event .  

Th is is  why I u rge you each to su pport H B  1335 in the sp i r it of respect and  
recogn it ion  o f  d iffe rent cu ltu ra l  ways of do i ng  t h i ngs . I n  the ea r ly days of forma l 
ed ucat ion ,  America n I nd i a n  youth were fo rced to cut the i r  h a i r  a nd ta ke Eng l i sh  
na mes .  They were forced to wea r c loth i ng u nfam i l ia r  to them and spea k on ly 
Eng l i sh . Al l of th is was done in the n ame of confo rm ity, the be l ief that one way of 
do i ng t h i ngs was s uper ior  to another, a nd the m isuse of power to destroy that wh ic  
was  d ifferent .  Today, we know better .  Or  I 'd  l i ke to  th i n k  we know bette r. 

To those who wou ld say, "We shou l d n't mandate th i s  on a State leve l .  Let the loca l 
schoo ls  dec ide", I say: Do not evade th is importa nt issue .  You mandate ma ny th i ngs . 
You mandate ach ievement tests beca use you know it is  importa nt to demonst rate 
schoo l  a nd student progress .  You mandate cu rr icu l u m  beca use you know it is 
im porta nt to teach certa i n  t h i ngs a nd it i s  importa nt for students to reach ce rta i n  
l eve l s  o f  u ndersta nd i ng .  Th is i s  no d iffe rent .  I t  i s  importa nt - I wou l d  even say c rit ica l 
i n  t h is day a nd  age - fo r you to mandate accepta nce of others, a nd  recogn it ion a nd 
respect of othe r  ways of be ing .  
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January 21, 2019 

House Education Committee 

600 E. Bou levard 

Bismarck, N D  58505 

Dear Education Committee Members, 

I am in support of House Bi l l  1335, Dress Code  - I nclusion of trad itional triba l  regal ia and 

objects of cultural significance. Below are some of the reasons I am in support of th is b i l l .  

Passing this b i l l  wi l l . . . 

I -1. 1 -1 9  
�3 

• Teach a l l  students of North Dakota the power of inclusion and unity. Governor Burgum 

and other  representatives have taken action and moving North Dakota in a positive 

d i rection to provide a more un ited North Dakota . Let's keep this momentum and 

message going in  our schools to create an inclusive, d iverse, and safe envi ronment in 

our  educational system. 

• Create a safe learning environment that encourages discussion and learning about other 

cu ltures, which wi l l  a lso he lp reduce stereotyping and bu l lying. 

• Encourage create a message of strength and unity within a l l  of North Dakota .  If we a l low 

schools to prohib it students wearing triba l  regal ia or items of cu ltura l  sign ificance, we 

are sending a message of oppression and d ivision. 

• Send  a message to students of d iverse backgrounds about the importance of their 

cu ltures and the educational system's support and respect of them.  

I am asking you ,  the House Education Committee, to p lease pass th is  b i l l .  We are a l l  citizens and 

human beings of North Dakota, including our students. Our educational institutions have a 

responsibi l ity to create unity and encourage acceptance of a l l  d iverse cultures. We should be 

making decisions that would inspire and create positive environments for a l l  students. By doing 

th is, we wou ld  create a more unified and safer learning environments in  North Dakota for al l  

our futu re generations. 

Respectful ly, 

):y� 
Sheridan L. Seaboy-McNei l  

Oyate Ohowicada Win {Respects the People Woman) 

Citizen of Standing Rock Sioux Tribe 

Career & Techn ical Education Director 

Un ited Tribes Techn ica l Col lege 

smcnei l@uttc.edu 

(701) 471-5735 



Testimony in  Support of HB  1335 
Submitted by I ra (Hankinson)  H igh E l k  

January 21, 2019 

My name  i s  I ra H igh  E l k  a nd I am he re to su pport H B  1335, a b i l l  fo r i nc l us ion  of 
t ra d it ion a l  t r i ba l  rega l i a and  objects of cu ltu ra l  s ign if ica nce .  

The Amer ica n I nd i a n  cu ltu re has been u nder  assa u lt s i n ce the t ime of fi rst contact .  
To many  of us, o u r  cu ltu ra l  ways have been ta ken away a nd many of ou r  
ce remon ies, a s  we l l  as  ou r  l a nguages, a re dyi ng .  O u r  a ncestors p roud ly fought 
aga i nst t h i s  a nd even he ld  ce remon ies a nd t rad it ions  u nderground  so they cou l d  
p rotect t hem fo r t he  generat ions ahead .  They made  the  u lt imate sacrifice so  that 
the i r  fo l l ow ing  gene rat ions a nd descenda nts cou l d  l ive t h rough what they d ied for . 
They had  so m uch  pr ide in being the o rig i n a l  peop le  of t h is l a nd  a nd  they wished 
that  we wou l d  be the sa me way. 

I n  ou r  schoo l s  today, not a l lowi ng us to rep resent o u r  cu ltu re in one  of the most 
importa nt stages a nd poi nts i n  ou r  l ife ta kes away from that hope of ou r  ancesto rs . 
G rad uat i ng  i s  a n  i m porta nt pa rt i n  the l ives of those that a re l uck i ly  a b le  to do so .  As 
a Nat ive student who  is p roud of my he ritage and  cu l tu ra l  ways, I wa nt to be a b le  to 
exp ress my i dent ity when I go th rough th is importa nt moment i n  my l ife . Be i ng a b le  
to wea r an  eag l e  feather, a symbo l  of  accomp l i sh ment i n  my Tri be, means  more to 
me than  a s im p l e  tasse l .  Be ing ab le to exp ress my ident ity with beadwork or other  
rega l i a  i s  more t ha n a decorat ion .  I t  i s  a n  exp ress ion of  my a ncesto rs who be l ieved 
i n  ou r  ways so m u ch that they were wi l l i ng to d ie fo r them .  

I know that  t he  fea r is  tha t  i f  you g ive us  Nat ive peop le  the ab i l ity to  wea r ou r  
cu ltu ra l  rega l ia ,  i t  w i l l  open the  door fo r everyone to  do  someth i ng cra zy o r  u n iq ue .  
I say th i s  an u nfounded fea r. Th is is  not a bout beads  and feathers .  We a re more tha n 
beads  a n d  feathe rs .  We a re the d rea m that ou r a n cestors had  to l ive i n  a society 
that we l comes a n d  respects us .  
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House Education Committee 

600 E. Bou leva rd 
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To House Education Committee Members, 
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I am  i n  su pport of House B i l l  1335 a new section to chapter 15 . 1-19 of the N D  Century Code, re lat ing to 
d ress code pol ic ies . 

The I nc lus ion of trad it iona l  triba l rega l ia and objects of cu ltura l  sign ificance. 

As a member of the Stand ing Rock Sioux Tribe I am int imately aware of the pride, sense of ach ievement 
and recogn it ion that a l lowing a Native student wear an eagle p lume (female)  or feather (ma le )  bri ngs. 
For a great many students this graduation ceremony may very be the on ly such recogn i zed ach ievement 
atta ined i n  the i r  l ife to pub l icly earn such an  honor. This practice for the citizens of the State of North 
Dakota shou ld not on ly exist with in  the borders of the Triba l Nations of North Dakota, but its citizens 
that l ive and  contribute greatly to off reservation commun ities, townsh ips and cities there i n .  

The  opportun ity to  share, learn and  commun icate should be encouraged, as wel l  as  the  cu ltures of  non­
native students who shou ld a lso be a l lowed to d isp lay their own measure of achievement on  par with 
the i r  cu ltura l  norms. Be that Native American, Norwegian ,  Swedish, German and others that make this 
great State of North Dakota such a great p lace to l ive . 

Let us  not d im i n ish what makes us  un ique, we wi l l  lose that beaut ifu l cu ltu ra l  tapestry that makes l ife 
i ncred ib le  i n  North Dakota . Th is wi l l  bu i ld and weave an  u nderstand ing i n  a school sett ing to learn 
h isto ry, respect and mutual understanding that we a re al l part of a wonderfu l human ity that re l ies on 
each other  i n  tough t imes. Counts on one another when cr is is a rises, respect ing that we al l  a re d ifferent 
and the very same .  You a re a d ifferent version of me and we l ive together i n  North Dakota .  

Th is is  a step i n  the right d i rection to u n ify through education a nd awareness as we celebrate the 
ach ievements of our  ch i ld ren for whom a l l  a re citizens of North Dakota . 

S incere ly, 

Joseph McNe i l  J r .  

Tatan ka Wanj i l a  (One Bull from Where the Buffalo Come) 

P resident- Stand ing Rock Deve lopment Corporation 

102 1st Ave, Fort Yates ND  58538 

joemcne i lsrst@gma i l . com 

701-425-3 776 



P ictu re of med ic i ne wheel accessory with the 
eag le feather. 

Eag le  feather worn by g raduate 
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Tri ba l  Rega l i a :  i nc l udes the fo l lowing,  but not 
l im ited to an eag le feather/p l ume, accessories; 
ie; qu i l lwork and beadwork, moccasi ns, r ibbon 
sh i rts, and trad it iona l  d resses. It i s  important 
to honor the d iverse rega l ia a nd customs of a l l  
tr i ba l  cu ltures. 

Eagle feather worn by g raduate 

K indergarten g raduate wea ri ng accessory 
(beaded meda l l ion) with beaded eag le feather. 



Dine '  (Navajo) trad it ional d ress and trad it iona l  footwear  
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1 335 

Page 1 ,  l ine 9, remove, "while participating in a school sanctioned or sponsored event" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 9, before the period , insert 

"at a graduation ceremony. For purposes of this section the term tribal regalia or object 
of cultural significance, means an eag le feather or eagle plume" 

SECTION 2. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure. 
1 1 

Renumber accordingly 



!-f 6 t 33S 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1 335 

Page 1 ,  l ine 9, remove, "while participating in a school sanctioned or sponsored event" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 9, before the period , insert 

"at a graduation ceremony. For purposes of this section the term tribal regalia or object 
of cultural significance, means an eag le feather or eagle plume" 

SECTION 2. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure. 
11 

Renumber accordingly 

f - so-zo,y 
I 



TESTIMONY 

Senate Education Committee 

HB  1335 

March 4, 2019 

Representative Ruth Buffa lo 

1//3 I !:,.s 5 
3 - 4- 1 1 
A-ff * I 
I I c;f2 I 

Cha i rm a n  Scha i b l e  a n d  members of the House Ed ucat ion Com m ittee, my n ame  i s  Ruth Buffa lo 

and I rep resent D i str i ct 27 in south Fa rgo . 

H B  1335 wou l d  a l low h igh school students to wea r  the i r  eag le feathe rs a nd  eag le p l umes du r ing 

the  ce l eb rat ion of the i r  academic  ach i evements and m i lestones such as  a h igh school 

gra d u at ion  ceremony .  

Every yea r, N at ive h igh schoo l  gradu ates seek to exp ress the i r  academ i c  a ch i evement and 

re l ig ious  be l i efs by wear ing eagle feathers as a part of  the i r  graduat ion ceremon ies .  Although 

most h igh schoo ls  recogn ize the academ i c  and sacred importance associ ated with weari ng 

eagle feathers at gra d u at ion ,  there sti l l  a re a few schoo ls  and d i str icts that do  not a l low th is 

trad it ion . 

"The principal said I have to make sure that [my eagle feather] is hidden and that  nobody can 

see it and it is out of sight. It makes me feel like I have to hide who I am. " 

-Waverly Wilson {Fort Belknap Indian Community) 

Whi l e  some schoo l s  a l l ow students to wea r  the i r  tr i b a l  rega l i a  wh ich  i n c l udes eagle feathers 

a n d  eag le p l umes, othe r  schools do not. Rather  than  h ave each student navigate th rough a 

system of advocacy wh ich causes a nx iety and  stress to ou r  you ng peop le, we want to be 

p roact ive by pass ing th is  b i l l  to where a l l  schoo ls  ca nnot p roh i b it the u se of . . .  

Students s hou l d  not h ave to worry whether  they wi l l  be a l lowed to ce lebrate the ir  he ritage by 

wea ri ng  the i r  t r i b a l  rega l i a  wh ich i nc l udes eagle feathers and eag le p l umes d u ri ng  a school  

sa n ct ioned event such as  a h igh school graduat ion ceremony.  

As a member  of a fede ra l ly recogn i zed tr ibe and someone who grew up on an I n d i a n  

reservat ion  i n  No rth  Da kota, I not on ly understand  t he  importance o f  ou r  sacred items such a s  

eag le feathe rs a n d  eagle p l umes, bu t  I a lso know ju st how important i t  i s  fo r ou r  young  people 

to t h rive wh i l e  emb rac ing the ir  Nat ive Amer ican heritage. Our young  people h ave h igh rates of 

su i c ide  and low rates of graduat ion ,  p lease he lp up u s  ce leb rate our N at ive Amer ica n  students 

very existence a n d  ach ievements by a l lowi ng them to wea r  the i r  t r i b a l  rega l i a  such as eagle 

feathers a n d  eagle p l u mes d u ri ng  a school sanct ioned event such as  a h igh school graduat ion . 

There i s  great i m po rt ance of sacred items, but as  a pa rent with a pub l i c  hea lth background, the 

p rotect ive factors of embrac ing our i nd igenous cu l ture and i dent ity. I u rge you to vote yes on 

the passage of H B  1335 .  M r. Cha i rman I wou l d  be h appy to an swer any q uest ions .  
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Good a fte rnoon Cha i rma n Scha i b le a n d  mem bers of the senate Ed ucat ion Com m ittee .  

My n a m e  i s  W i l low H a l l , a nd I 'm  from Distr ict 4 7  i n  B i smarck, a nd I am  here today t o  test ify i n  favo r o f  HB 1335 in  rega rds 
to the  d ress code at  grad uat ion  ce remon ies .  

I be l ieve that  i t  is we l l  past t ime  that  we created space fo r our  Fi rst Nat ions friends a nd ne ighbors to exist i n  our  spaces 
in a fu l l  representat ion of t hemse lves i nc l ud i ng cu l tura l  rega l ia that  had s ign ifica nce to the i nd ivid u a l .  G raduat ions a re 
such a spec ia l t ime  i n  a young persons l ife it 's natura l  that  they wou ld  want to express that  d u ring these sign ifica nt 
events .  

Tha n k  you fo r you r  support of th is issue, 

W i l l ow Ha l l  
D i st rict 47, B i sm a rck ND  

1 
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HB  1335 
Testimony of Amy De Kok 

Senate Education 
March 4, 2019 

Cha i rman  Scha i b l e  a nd members of the Senate Ed ucat ion comm ittee, my name is Amy De Kok. I am 

in -house lega l counse l  fo r the North Da kota Schoo l  Boa rds  Associat ion .  NDSBA represents a l l  178  North 

Da kota pub l i c  schoo l d i st ricts and their boa rds .  I am  here today i n  support of HB 1335 .  

We recognize the importa nce of student's be ing a b le  to  express themse lves and  the i r  cu l tura l  

i de nt ity d u ri ng  important  events .  H B  1335, a s  amended i n  the House, a ppropriate ly str ikes a ba la nce 

between the student's r ight of express ion and  the school  d i str ict's right to regu late schoo l  events, 

part icu l a r ly  grad uat io n .  I ndeed ,  some schoo l d i stricts a l ready have s im i l a r  la nguage inc l uded with i n  the i r  

d ress code po l icy ( i . e .  the B i sma rck Pub l i c  Schoo l  D istr ict) A lso, l ast yea r, South Da kota adopted s im i l a r  

leg i s l a t ion a nd  a l lowed the wea r ing of s im i l a r  tr iba l rega l i a  at "grad uat ion or  awards ceremon ies." 

N DSBA asks the com m ittee to issue a do  pass recommendat ion on HB 1335 .  I wou l d  be happy to 

a nswe r a n,y q uest ions  the com m ittee may have . 
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Hanh Chairman Schaible and members of the Committee. For the record, my name is Carel 

Two-Eagle . I stand in support of HB 1335 . 

Various people will have already spoken on our cultural ways and values and the need for 

every available tool to help strengthen Indigenous youth and get them to graduate from 

high school. The suicide rates of our youth are very high, while the graduation rates from 

high school are very low. The amount of racism we face , along with seemingly never­

ending assaults on our cultural and spiritual Ways to destroy them, place a very heavy 

burden on all Natives ,  but especially on our youth. 

I'm a great-grandmother, and I still get a lot of "static" about our spiritual and cultural Ways . 

If I had a dollar for every time someone in North Dakota has told me, "If you would just 

drop Treaty Rights and Traditionalism, we'd make you very rich" - I would already BE very 

rich. 

I have rhino hide, and I developed it early. I have spent my life striving to teach others to 

have the same thick skin about racism and associated remarks such as "You need to learn 

your place . "  My reply has always been, "I already know my place. It's wherever I can get to 

without stepping on anyone else . Which is what makes people like you so nervous about 

people like me. "  

We Indigenous are citizens of  both the United States and of  our own Nations . Reservations 

are Nations . Dual citizenship is not uncommon, so we have as much right to vote in "U.S ."  

elections as anyone does. We got the right to vote courtesy of the Snyder Act of 1924. It 

came to us mainly as a "thank you" for the services of our veterans, since our People enlist in 

the military in larger numbers than all other U.S .  races combined. 

I have striven for decades to get Indians to vote , because your governmental form has caused 

us so much grief. Many times, it has been intentional . Other times, it has been the result of 

good-intentioned ignorance .  But I come here to testify because of the Holy Pipe I walk 

with. "Ch'annunpa yuha wamani ye" - "I Walk with a Pipe" .  "Ch'annunpa wakhan ye" -

"The Pipe is Holy" . I 'm not here because of a hobby; I come here because the Spirits told me 

to do this . I have an ability to speak well, so I have an obligation to use it to help the People 

- To help heal the Sacred Hoop. This is in our Indian Way. By testifying, I can educate you 

so you pass fewer laws that cause us grief and we have to go to court to set things right . 

After all, we are not going away and we are not going to become extinct. This is our 

original home. We have a right to our Ways . 
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Because of our citizenship in the U.S . ,  I believe that school districts trying to disallow our 

Indigenous students their rights to wear cultural garb, including but not limited to eagle 

feathers , are violating our First Amendment Rights . Those are the Rights to Freedom of 

Speech, Freedom of Expression, and Freedom of Religion. Thus to recommend Do Pass on 

this bill is to make a start to correct the violations that have already occurred. 

Nothing in our heritage regalia is accidental. Every part has a meaning. Color, design, 

icons, materials - everything has meaning in our Ways. These meanings are not the same 

from one Native Nation to another. There is not and has never been "an Indian culture" .  

There are more than 500 Indigenous cultures here . 527 years ago, there were more than 

2,000 individual Indigenous cultures . Therefore, this bill is a good start, to the work of 

restoring the right to wear our cultural garb to our youth when they have a milestone to 

celebrate, such as graduation from high school . 

I have a sister who exemplifies this. She was fostered out like so many of us have been. She 

was battered by her fosterers . She did not graduate high school as a result. But she hung 

out with some other people from our Reservation who not only hadn't graduated, but they 

decided to get their GED's as a group, and they dragged her along. 

After she (and they) got their GED's ,  they decided to get 2-year degrees. She hung back, but 

again they dragged her along, and she got a 2-year degree in education. Then they decided 

to get their 4-year degrees - and they dragged her along and she got a 4-year degree in 

Special Education. 

The state came to her one day and said, "We don't have enough Indian people with 

advanced degrees. We want you to work on a Master's degree . "  She replied, "We don't 

have enough Indians with high school degrees ! But what is your offer?" 

They paid her a stipend to go to school and get an advanced degree. She did so well ,  she 

now has a double Master's - in Intellectual Development and Special Education. I 'm 

extremely proud of her. She was a poster woman for "Not Beads and Feathers Any More" .  

She is Traditional. A person does not "have" to stop being Traditional in order to get a 

degree or a job or to have a career. Indeed, we have a right to remain Traditional and to 

exercise our Traditional Ways while doing our jobs or working in our careers . 

In 2005 , the U.S .  Supreme Court decreed that we have a right to speak our heritage 

languages anywhere without restrictions. It seems strange that we should have to fight for 

this, but we did, and we won. Since we have the right to speak our languages, we have the 

right to wear our heritage regalia too, especially at milestones such as graduations . 



So I hope you will give HB 1335 a unanimous Do Pass recommendation and help heal the 

Sacred Hoop in so doing. If anyone has any questions, I 'm always available . Thank you for 

hearing me in a good way now. 

<<>>  

P .S .  Today after I testified before you, I was walking along the hall and an  elderly white 

woman was walking toward me. She saw that I 'm an Indian and she walked over so she was 

directly in front of me and told me to go around her. I put a crutch tip on her toes gently 

and said, 'Tm the one on crutches. You walk around me. "  And I smiled at her. She told me I 

need to learn my place . I laughed. She walked around me. 

Think about how this is likely to have impacted a high school-age Indian if it had happened 

to one of ours . Few have the toughness I developed early . .  That young person's day would 

probably have been considerably darkened. 

A unanimous Do Pass recommendation will help prevent such things . Thank you! 
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